
� � ��

�����������	� � ��


���������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �
�!�"!�!���!#$�"%#&'��()#!"*'��"++#��  �,��-�.#%%��"%(����������+  �#$/����0122�3�3�"$���4*!(�'5��6*#%�785�929:3�;<���=>�<?�@�AA��B�>�CB<DEDF�A�G�H�=�ID>H=DEHJ�	�KK�LA>�<�M��NJ�OP�B>�<N�L�Q>J�@R�S�TUK�VD��WLLC?�XYYZ[\]]̂[_̀abcdeffgd̂[]h]ijik̀lmnojmpZaqrstcujeỲnjvwZXx̀ayz{|a}[as~���d}cû|�lz����z��b�G��D<�=�;I?������UT	����	����������>>E�N�?��KK��������������3���%%��"��*( *��3��"%%���%%��3��/ $(��� )# .��3�4�%#&��"++ $�!��3����� +� *��"++ $�!��3�� /4%�*��/ $(��73��66*") ��� ��#$4� !�"���� ���*&��925�929:�� /4%�*��  �#$/��93��������&�/*"4$(�;�<��=DEP�=NJ�I�FBH����<�=�A�C�<���=����@�AA��B�>�CB<DEDF�A�G�H�=�ID>H=DEHJ��DAA�F=�VDN��D<��=��HD�<��<�HP��PD>H�=�J��F�=�HD�<>J��<N���H�=�=�>�B=E��N�V�A�F��<H�FA�<>���=�HP��ID>H=DEH���03��4(/ ���#!&4!!#"$��L<�RF=DA��KJ�G�H�=��>H�=�E�<V���N�HP��H����HH�EP�N�����>�H��HP���R@J�=�A�HD<��H��HP���>H��AD>P��<H�����<��V�=B>���>>�>>��<H��<N������F�ADE��=���=ND<��>B=FAB>�G�H�=��>H�=��BN��H��OP���R@��DAA�ND>EB>>�HP��H���=��B�>H>��=���G�H�=��>H�=J��>���AA��>��<���HP�=�N�V�A�F��<H>�H��N�H���<�HP����	��	U�G�H�=��>H�=��BN��H����3���!#$��6�#+#���#"$��# %(���4('���* � ** (��"( %#$/��%� *$��#) ��$(��+6�&�!��"��&� (4% �OP��@���DHH����DAA�P��=���F=�>�<H�HD�<��<��<N�ND>EB>>�HP��F=�>��<N�E�<>����HP����N�AD<���AH�=<�HDV�>�F=�>�<H�N�D<�HP��IBN�Q�����=�<NB���N�H�N�C�=EP�T�J�	K	����<N���ND�D�N����HP��G�H�=��>H�=�D<�HP�D=�RF=DA�TJ�	K	������=�<NB�����=�HP������=�<NB�J�HP��G�H�=��>H�=�P�>�=��B�>H�N��R@�E�<>BAH�HD�<��<�HP��F�ADE��D�FADE�HD�<>����HP����AA��D<��H���F�D<H>?� ¡¢£¤¢£¥�¡¦¤£¥§¦̈¤£¥�̈¢©ª«¬�ª̈£�¤¢£�¡®̄�°£¥±©¬±²�³́¦«ª¦¤±©µ�§©¬£«�¶±«£̈�¤©��̂·�[̧b·��¹f[��f��Z�bZ���Y¹f·�f��YXb���[¹·�wZY¹g¹e�Y¹f·�s¹bºq�»Ŷqz���YXb��YX�·�
4/17/25 PAC Agenda Packet Page 1 of 19



� � ��

������������� � ��

	
����������	���
�����������������	��������������������
����� !��	"����#�	$�����������	��
��������
��"�������
������
��"�#����"�������	"�	�	$������%&'()*&%&+,(�'+-�&.,*'/,01+�*&21*,(34��56�789&,9&*�)(0+:�,9&�;8<=�>&*01-0/�?@'A)',01+�%1-&A�B0A&(�,1�/1%2A&,&�,9&�C'(0+���������������	��� ���D����E�"���FGFH�I�"���������������	�J�D�FGFH�K��	"�
�	"����"���I�L�"	#��"
�		����M����"�N���	�D�I��"�����
�O	I�"	���	�
��"���I�K��	"��	�"�FGFH���#��O	"�PM�FGFH���"����� 	��	O	"�QGM�FGFR�M��
���"	�
���O�	����	"����$	�I�"���	�D�#���	������I���	���
�����������������	���S,)-T34�UV��W�X�YZ�[X�Y�V�[�Y�\]�[X�6�XV���̂_�̀Y�ab6��bX[�c�d�ZZ�56�Xb�5�c�̀�YX�ef�g�f�hi��j�kl�mn�opq�rstuvwwxyyzz�{z|v}y~��̂_�Y�̀Y�[�5X�Xba�[��5�[]ed�ZZbXX��[��b���̀Y�ab6��Y�̀�YX[���l��̀�Y�Xb�5[��]ed�ZZbXX����l����d]Xba���]ed�ZZbXX�����l��b[d����]ed�ZZbXX�����l�Û_��]ed�ZZbXX�����n��}xyyz��qvwws�xu�yxv�����5���n��sys}z�p�z�����yzw~��UV���̂_��b���d�5[b6�Y�bX�Z[���Y��]X]Y�����56�[l����n�p��vs}����pyy�u�wz�y~�����n�opq�������������zzyx����x�syz~�����n���yz}w�~yz}��zwv}���sw�yv�opq��p|}x���������� �¡�¢£z}s~z�p~~z~~wz�y�����tn���yz}w�~yz}��zwv}���sw�yv�opq��p|}x���������� �¡���yz}w�~yz}�¤s��zy�rs}|�s~����¥�n���yz}w�~yz}��zwv}���sw�yv�opq��p|}x��������� �¡�¤�~x��¢|yxwx¦�yxv��§xz���rys�̈�¡�o}z©z}}z���v�z�x���p�yz}��yx£z������w|�uy~�yv�ru�z�s�z���¥tn���yz}w�~yz}��zwv}���sw�yv�opq��ªzuzwtz}��������¥ �¡�¤�~x��¢|yxwx¦�yxv��§xz���rys�̈�ru�z�s�z���¥un�ªs�z«��zwv}���sw�yv���yz}w�~yz}����}u���������� �¡�¤�~x��¢|yxwx¦�yxv��§xz���rys�̈�p�yz}��yx£z�p||}v�u���ruv|z������ru�z�s�z��w|�uy~��
4/17/25 PAC Agenda Packet Page 2 of 19



���

��������������	
�����������
��������
��������		���������������������������� !"� ! #��������������������$$�%���������$��%��&'����%���((������)���*���$&�������$����%+��&�(����������,-!!������������&�%"������� !"� ! #"������$$������������.�$�/�������������"� 0!!��$�������&"��������&���1�"���"���&�'���2��(3���45�6788�9:�;<=><?�����@��������+�A���������$$�&�����(������������&������,-!B���3� ���C5�D:88�6788?���������$$�E��������(�(+����E����.������-��03�/��������������������������$�����F���+�A������"�����@������ 3�2���������$�/�������(.��%�F�G����������,3�	���������������(�$$�������$�����F�G����/������)'���2��(*�B3�	�������������������$�/�������(.��%�F������$����'���)'���2��(*�#3�/���������������(�$$�������$�����F�������&���'�$������H3�/�������������������$�/�������(.��%�F����'����������)'���2��(*�� ������$$�E��������(�(+����E�����+����-�03���$$������������.�$�/��������������F������������&"�������� 3��������������%�/����E��1������������0���&�0I�F�G������$(���,3�������������F���((�����$�B3�	��������������������������$�����F���'�&����E�+�����#3�/����(������)���@'�����*�F�J�����K���1�L��L��+����M�(.�������J�A��������&�&�����(�������'���2��(����+���$�����/����(�����NJ�����K���1�3��65�4O>P=7�D>QR>S?����������������������&��E������T�����&��������&3��U5�VWX8RY�6:ZZ>P9[?�������E�������.�+$�����((����3��\5�V46�]>ZX><�6:ZZ>P9[?�������E�����������(�(+�����((����3��̂5�D>OW87<�4O>P=7�_5�4̀ <̀:Q>�9a>�]RPW9>[�:b�9a>�]7<Ya�cd�efegd�D>OW87<�V46�]>>9RPO��������&���'�$�����(�'�&�����..��'������(���������������&���������������H"� ! #"�(������h������$����'��������&�&�����(�����3�����(������.����&�E������'�������H@�%��h�!@�%�h�!@�+���������h�B@�+����3�e5�̂R[Y78�i>7<�efegjec�̂6k]4lm79><Z7[9><�CW=O>9�/����(������.��'����$%�.��'�&�&���&����������$�+�&������&�&����������$�E��1.$�������J����$�
����)J
*� ! #@ H���������nopqr������&����������&���((�����������$���������������&�����E������������s3#��������G�&�(���3���������&�������&�����&����������$�+�&�������&����$��������(�����������J�+����%� !"� ! #"���&�������H"� ! #"���&�������((���������(�&���$�����������((��&������3�

F-1 2025-03-20 PAC Meeting Minutes

4/17/25 PAC Agenda Packet Page 3 of 19



���

��������	�
���������������������������	��������������������
�����������������������������
������� �!������
��
����
���
���
���������	���������
�������������������
����"���
�����
������
���#$��� �!%�&���������
����������#��
���������������'�
�
����������������
������	(�"���
�����
�����������'���
�)������'�
�
��������*���
�'���������'���'�
�������'�
������������������
������������������%����&�����������������������
���#$������
�������
��������
�'���'������ �!*���"���
�����
�	����������������������������	�
����
�������������������
�����'�'������
�����'�����+��%�,��
-��-���������(��
-��-���"���
�����
�	�����������.��������������	������
�(���'����������������	��
�����������-	(-���������������/���	�����������.�������'�
������������
������������
����������������������'�����
��	��������
�����
���������%�	%���
������������	����
'�
�����������
��������������������"���
�����
�	�������
��'�
������.��������	���'����'�0�1�2��������������������
��������
�����/����	���������%��%���
������'�'�����
������������� �3*�!�	�������������	����
'�
�����������
������'�	�������������������������������������
(�'�
�����'��
���)��
��
��'�������

����'������(��
%��%���
������'�'�����������	����
'�
�����������
�����������������	�����
��������������������������
-�
����������	������������������������������������
���������	����������������%��%�0������.��������������	����
������
����(��
��4���������
���
�����
���%������(�����������
��������
������
�������
�������	(����������������������	������
�(�������'��������������������������
4��������	��������'������������
+��5���������
�����6��
�	5�7�'�
������-
������6��
��5�8�'������'���8��������������%�1���-����
�/
����
����������������/��*"���
�����
�������������������������������
���#9��� �!������
���
���������������/��*"���
�����
����������������������	����
����������������:;<=>�
����������������������
������������������
���������������������������	����������
��
��������	���������	(�"���
�����
����
������������'���-������������
�������� �!*���	�����%�?�'����������������"���
�����
�� �!*����
�'��	���������������������������	�
����������"���
�����
*��/��������������������&��%�����
����
�������'������
�'��	����������	������������������������������(�	������������	��%�@A�BCD�EFGHIJJKLLMM�NMOIPLQR�#%�S��
���������	���������+�T���������6������������
���
�%��%�7.����������	���������+������/���7.���������������������������������������
���#U��� �!6�V��������������
���������
���
���������������'
�����������������������
���
����(������'��������'�
���������������������������.���������%�$%����������	���������+������/�����������������������������������������
���#9��� �!6�1���-����
�/
����
�
���
�������������	������������������
����?�����
��������������%�%�3%�&�����	���������+���&������������������������
���#9��� �!%�&��������������	
��'���������
���
��(�'����������WXY�Z;<=>�>[XY\]̂_̀a�bc�Wd>e>�d̀\�\Ŷ_fYgh�bc�WXY_g�gY[biiỲ\dW_b̀�
���
��%��jA�kPKLLMl�DIJJFlKHmLKIlR�T���%�nA�oFLFPM�CpMlqm�nLMJQ+��

F-1 2025-03-20 PAC Meeting Minutes

4/17/25 PAC Agenda Packet Page 4 of 19



���

��������	
���	�������������	���������	�����������������
�
��������	��
��	
����������� 
����	�!
��
���	"��
�����������
���	������	��
�������� ���	�	����	����!����"������������	�������#��$����%�� 
���
������
���	���""����
������ �����	�����&��
��������"�������	��������	���'��	��	����()�#*#+,#-�������&�����	����!����������������	�����������
""�
��������������������������&��	���
���
����	���	!������������	������������	��	�����
��"�����	�.�����
������/�0�1��
���2��$����%�� 
���
���������
��
������
"���"�����
�����	��	�"����	�����/����������%�'�
�
�
����	��	�"���� ���	���'�
�
�
����	�"�������34�56789:;<=;>?�0
��@���
	��	����	��.��	�������"���
������2A+B��������
��������C��	�����	���&	
��%��"���
��� �
���
������������	�%�	
��2��#*#-�����2A**������
F-1 2025-03-20 PAC Meeting Minutes

4/17/25 PAC Agenda Packet Page 5 of 19



FOX CANYON GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY
LAS POSAS VALLEY WATERMASTER 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: April 10, 2025 
To: Las Posas Valley Watermaster Policy Advisory Committee 
From: Kudzai F. Kaseke, Assistant Groundwater Manager 
Subject: Committee Consultation on Surplus Watermaster Budget. 

Dear Las Posas Valley Watermaster Policy Advisory Committee (PAC): 

The Las Posas Valley Adjudication Judgment (Judgment), requires Watermaster following Committee 
Consultation, annually determine and prepare a Watermaster Budget. (Judgment, §7.5). Watermaster has 
held two Watermaster budget study sessions; February 27, 2025, and March 18, 2025. At the last budget 
study session, March 18, 2025, the Fox Canyon Groundwater Management Agency (FCGMA) Fiscal 
Committee directed staff to consult your committee for policy decisions regarding surplus Watermaster 
Budget. Suggestions include but are not limited to reducing future basin assessments and or keeping the 
surplus as a separate fund for replenishment water purposes etc.  

Please provide policy recommendations to Watermaster either in writing or at the FCGMA Fiscal 
Committee meeting on May 06, 2025.  

Please contact me at 805 654 2010 or LPV.Watermaster@ventura.org with any questions or concerns. 

F-3a - 20250410 Watermaster Memo RE LPV Surplus Budget

4/17/25 PAC Agenda Packet Page 6 of 19

mailto:LPV.Watermaster@ventura.org


FOX CANYON GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY
LAS POSAS VALLEY WATERMASTER 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: April 10, 2025 
To: Las Posas Valley Watermaster Policy Advisory Committee 
From: Kudzai F. Kaseke, Assistant Groundwater Manager 
Subject: Committee Consultation for Establishment of an Overuse Assessment for Las Posas 

Valley Basin. 

Dear Las Posas Valley Watermaster Policy Advisory Committee (PAC): 

The Las Posas Valley Adjudication Judgment (Judgment) defines “Overuse” as “a Use in Excess of that 
allowed under the Judgment.” (Judgment, §4.15.1) Generally, Overuse occurs when a Water Right Holder 
Uses Groundwater in excess of Annual Allocation; Annual Allocations are determined for each Water Year 
by Watermaster according to the Annual Allocation Calculation process set forth Exhibit D of the Judgment. 
(See also Judgment, § 4.2.)  More specifically, the Judgment provides that Overuse occurs where 

Use of Groundwater by a Party other than Calleguas that is not a Mutual Exclusive 
Shareholder (unless that Mutual Shareholder and its Mutual Water Company have agreed 
to the separate reporting of said Mutual Exclusive Shareholder’s Groundwater Use 
pursuant to Section 4.7.1) that either has no Annual Allocation or exceeds such Party’s 
Annual Allocation (inclusive of Annual Allocation derived from Transferred Allocation Basis 
or Carryover), any Carryover, and any Groundwater to which such Party is entitled 
pursuant to a Subscription Project” or “The aggregate Use of Allocated Groundwater by a 
Mutual Water Company’s Mutual Exclusive Shareholders (excluding those Mutual 
Exclusive Shareholders who have agreed with their Mutual Water Company to separately 
report their Groundwater Use pursuant to section 4.7.1) exceeds the Aggregate Mutual 
Supply. 

(Judgement, §§ 4.15.1.1, 4.15.1.2.)  The Judgment provides Water Right Holders several options to cure 
Overuse “in the Water Year [immediately] following the Water Year in which the Overuse occur[s].” 
(Judgment, § 4.15.2.)  However, if a Water Right Holder fails to cure the Overuse as provided in the 
Judgment, then the Water Right Holder, Party, or Person shall be subject to an Overuse Assessment and/or 
injunctive relief, as the case may be.  (Ibid.)  “Failure to pay [an] Overuse Assessment will incur interest on 
the amount owed and further enforcement [],” as well as additional enforcement including injunctive relief 
and liening the associated real property for unpaid Overuse Assessments. (Judgment, § 4.15.3.) 

The Judgment requires Watermaster, with Committee Consultation, to establish the amount of the 
Overuse Assessment.  (Judgment, § 4.15.3.)  To date, Watermaster has not established the amount or rate 
of the Overuse Assessment.  In compliance with the Judgment, Watermaster requests your Committee’s 
consultation and policy recommendations on Watermaster’s establishment of the Overuse Assessment, 
specifically the amount of the Overuse Assessment.  Watermaster staff plan to bring an item and 

F-3b 20250410 Watermaster Memo RE LPV Overuse Assessment - Revised

4/17/25 PAC Agenda Packet Page 7 of 19



recommendation on the amount of the Overuse Assessment r to the Fox Canyon Groundwater 
Management Agency Board of Directors (acting as the Watermaster Board) at the May 28, 2025, meeting. 
Please provide feedback via the email below to the Watermaster by May 09, 2025.  

Please contact me at 805 654 2010 or LPV.Watermaster@ventura.org with any questions or concerns.  

 

F-3b 20250410 Watermaster Memo RE LPV Overuse Assessment - Revised

4/17/25 PAC Agenda Packet Page 8 of 19

mailto:LPV.Watermaster@ventura.org


FOX CANYON GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

LAS POSAS VALLEY WATERMASTER 

800 South Victoria Avenue, Ventura, CA  93009-1610 
(805) 654-2014             https://fcgma.org/ 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Las Posas Valley Policy Advisory Committee 

From: Kudzai F. Kaseke, Assistant Groundwater Manager 

Date: April 03, 2025 

RE: Basin Optimization Yield Study – Preferred Modeling Alternative and Impacts to 
Schedule 

Dear Las Posas Valley Policy Advisory Committee Members: 

The LPV Adjudication judgment requires preparation of a Basin Optimization Yield 
Study, which will set the Basin Optimization Yield, and in turn set the Operating Yield and 
Rampdown Rate, so that by Water Year 2040 the LPV Basin’s Operating Yield is equal to its 
Sustainable Yield and Sustainable Groundwater Management is achieved.  (Judgment, §§ 
1.22, 4.10.)   

In a December 23, 2024 memorandum to this committee, Watermaster explained that 
the Basin Optimization Yield Study could be completed by the end of December 2025; this 
schedule assumed Watermaster would obtain access to UWCD model(s) and/or modeling 
services. However, if it was unable to obtain access to UWCD model files(s) and/or modeling 
services, then Watermaster explained that it must develop alternatives to using UWCD 
model(s) and/or modeling services to complete the Basin Optimization Yield Study.  (Exhibit 
A.)  Those alternatives included (i) estimating the Basin Optimization Yield and Rampdown 
using GSP periodic evaluation model simulations; (ii) estimating the Basin Optimization Yield 
and Rampdown using historical groundwater elevation measurements and extraction reports; 
and (iii) developing a new numerical groundwater flow model for the West Las Posas 
Management Area.  These alternatives would add approximately three to six months, three to 
six months, and 18 to 24 months, respectively, to the schedule for completing the Basin 
Optimization Yield Study. (Exhibit A.)   

Since December 2024, Watermaster and its consultant, Dudek, have identified an 
additional alternative: estimating the Basin Optimization Yield using the UWCD Periodic 
Evaluation model files to run new scenarios.  Watermaster and Dudek estimate that 
this alternative would result in the Basin Optimization Yield Study being completed in April 
2026 for adoption at the May 2026 Watermaster Board of Directors meeting.   

The Watermaster Board of Directors asked Dudek to review and select its preferred 
modeling alternative, after removing from consideration the alternative of developing a new 
numerical groundwater flow model for the West Las Posas Management Area (which would 

F-4a - 20250403 Watermaster Memo to PAC RE BOYS Preferred Alternative

4/17/25 PAC Agenda Packet Page 9 of 19

https://protect.checkpoint.com/v2/___https://fcgma.org/___.YzJ1OmNvdmF2YW5hbjpjOm86OGIxMTEyMjQ4MTFlZTIwYThmNTViMWIzYTZiZjZlNDU6Njo2ZjZmOmI1MmFkNDRkNWQwNzAyM2QxZWJkMjU5OWI4ODVjN2Y5M2M4YWU0MmQwMTg5MjNhYzhmZmM2OGJjMWRlMDZkMzY6cDpGOk4


Page 2 of 2 

Las Posas Valley Policy Advisory Committee 
April 03, 2025  

add 18 to 24 months to the schedule) and submit its analysis to the LPV Policy Advisory 
Committee (PAC) and Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) for consultation.  Dudek’s analysis 
of modeling alternatives, and their respective impacts to the schedule, for preparing the Basin 
Optimization Yield Study is attached as Exhibit B.  

CONSULTATION REQUEST 
Pursuant to Section 6.3 of the LPV Adjudication judgment, Watermaster requests the PAC 
provide its recommendations on the following: 

1. Preferred Alternative.  Whether Watermaster should use the UWCD Periodic Evaluation
model files to run scenarios for preparation of the Basin Optimization Yield Study rather
than estimating the Basin Optimization Yield and Rampdown (i) using GSP periodic
evaluation model simulations or (ii) using historical groundwater elevation
measurements and extraction reports?

2. Schedule Impact.  Whether using the UWCD Periodic Evaluation model files to complete
the Basin Optimization Yield Study in April 2026 for adoption at the May 2026
Watermaster Board of Directors meeting, approximately four months before the start of
Water Year 2026 (October 1, 2026 through September 30, 2027), is a reasonable
alternative for timely completion of the Basin Optimization Yield Study?

Watermaster requests PAC’s Recommendation Report, including its policy recommendations 
and comments, on the consultation requests discussed in this memorandum by May 09, 2025.  

Please contact me at (805) 654-2010 or LPV.Watermaster@ventura.org with any 
questions or concerns. 

F-4a - 20250403 Watermaster Memo to PAC RE BOYS Preferred Alternative

4/17/25 PAC Agenda Packet Page 10 of 19

mailto:LPV.Watermaster@ventura.org


 

FOX CANYON GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

LAS POSAS VALLEY WATERMASTER 

800 South Victoria Avenue, Ventura, CA  93009-1610 

(805) 654-2014             https://fcgma.org/ 

127317233.1 0041862-00002  

12/23/24  

MEMORANDUM 

To: Las Posas Valley Policy Advisory Committee 

From: Kudzai F. Kaseke, Assistant Groundwater Manager 

Date: December 23, 2024 

RE: Basin Optimization Yield Study Schedule 

Dear Las Posas Valley Policy Advisory Committee Members: 

Section 4.10 of the judgment entered in Las Posas Valley Water Rights Coalition, et al. v. Fox 
Canyon Groundwater Management Agency, et al., Santa Barbara Sup. Ct. Case No. 
VENCI000509700 (Judgment) requires the Watermaster to prepare a Basin Optimization Yield 
Study (BOYS), which will set the Basin Optimization Yield for the Las Posas Valley Basin (LPV 
Basin), and in turn the Operating Yield and the Rampdown Rate for Water Years through Water 
Year 2039.  (Judgment, § 4.10.1.4.)  

Exigent circumstances necessitate an extension of the schedule included in the Judgment, 
originally and as amended, for preparation of the BOYS.  Currently, Watermaster estimates 
completion of the BOYS, consistent with the committee consultation required by the Judgment 
and inclusive of additional consultation requested by the LPV Technical Advisory Committee, 
by the end of December 2025.  Watermaster’s revised schedule for completion of the BOYS, 
including dates for completion of specific tasks and work, is attached as Exhibit A.  Pursuant 
to Section 6.3 of the Judgment, Watermaster requests Committee Consultation with the Las 
Posas Valley Policy Advisory Committee (PAC), including specifically PAC’s policy 
recommendations and comments, on the revised schedule for preparation of the BOYS as set 
forth in Exhibit A. 

The revised schedule for preparation of the BOYS assumes United Water Conservation District 
(UWCD) provides Watermaster access to certain model(s) and/or modeling services.  If 
Watermaster is unable to obtain access to UWCD’s model(s) and/or modeling services, 
Watermaster must rely on alternative model(s) and/or technical services to characterize future 
groundwater conditions within the West Las Posas Management Area (WLPMA) and complete 
preparation of the BOYS.  Watermaster has asked its professional consultant, Dudek, to 
identify options for developing or obtaining replacement model(s) and/or modeling services.  
Dudek has prepared the following alternatives to obtaining UWCD model(s) and/or modeling 
services: 

F-4b - Exh A - 20241223 Watermaster Memo to PAC RE BOYS Schedule

4/17/25 PAC Agenda Packet Page 11 of 19

https://protect.checkpoint.com/v2/___https:/fcgma.org/___.YzJ1OmNvdmF2YW5hbjpjOm86NGNlNGY0Mzc0YTQ1MmFmZDY4ZjY3N2Y5ZGExM2MyN2I6NjpmY2E3OjQ0ZTNmZDhkMGNiNDYyYjA3NjZiMTg0NTFiZjc4MWRhOTNlMjg2YTdhYTI2YmI3ZGU3NGQ3MWIyZTQ3NDViOTk6cDpUOk4


 
Las Posas Valley Policy Advisory Committee 
December 23, 2024 

F:\gma\LPV Watermaster\Policy Advisory Committee\PAC Correspondence\20241223_PACMemo_BOYS_Schedule.docx 

127317233.1 0041862-00002  

12/23/24  

1. Estimation of Basin Optimization Yield and Rampdown Using GSP Evaluation 
Model Simulations 

a. This alternative would utilize model results presented in the LPV Groundwater 
Sustainability Plan (GSP) Periodic Evaluation and may require additional 
technical analyses to characterize the impacts of allocation distributions on the 
WLPMA yield. 

b. Estimated Schedule Impacts: Additional 3 to 6 months to the schedule set forth 
in Exhibit A. 

 
2. Estimation of Basin Optimization Yield and Rampdown Using Historical 

Groundwater Elevation Measurements and Extraction Reports 

a. This alternative would consider the relationship between groundwater levels and 
pumping to estimate the WLPMA yield. 

b. Estimated Schedule Impacts: Additional 3 to 6 months to the schedule set forth 
in Exhibit A. 

 
3. Development of a New Numerical Groundwater Flow Model for the West Las 

Posas Management Area 

a. This approach would cover the development of a new model for the WLPMA that 
is distinct from UWCD’s Updated Coastal Plain Model. The model would be 
developed and maintained by FCGMA. 

b. Estimated Schedule Impacts: Additional 18 to 24 months to the schedule set forth 
in Exhibit A. 

 
Pursuant to Section 6.3 of the Judgment, Watermaster requests Committee Consultation with 
PAC, including specifically PAC’s policy recommendations and comments, on each of the 
above alternatives and the additional amounts of time to be added to the revised schedule for 
preparation of the BOYS as set forth in Exhibit A. 
 
Watermaster requests PAC’s Recommendation Report, including its policy recommendations 
and comments, on the Committee Consultation requests discussed in this memorandum by 
January 31, 2025. 
 
Please contact me at (805) 654-2010 or LPV.Watermaster@ventura.org with any questions or 
concerns. 
 
 

F-4b - Exh A - 20241223 Watermaster Memo to PAC RE BOYS Schedule

4/17/25 PAC Agenda Packet Page 12 of 19

mailto:LPV.Watermaster@ventura.org


March 31, 2025 

Dr. Farai Kaseke, Ph.D., P.H., PMP, CSM 
Assistant Groundwater Manager 
Fox Canyon Groundwater Management Agency 
800 South Victoria Avenue 
Ventura, California 

Subject: Basin Optimization Yield Study Alternative Approach, Scope, and Schedule Impacts 

Dear Dr. Kaseke: 

In October 2024, the Fox Canyon Groundwater Management Agency (FCGMA) Board of Directors, acting in their role 
as Watermaster for the Las Posas Valley (LPV) Basin, contracted Dudek to prepare the 2025 Basin Optimization 
Yield (BOY) Study for the LPV Basin. The purpose of this study, which is a requirement under the Judgment1, is to 
quantify the BOY and determine the Rampdown Rate. The definitions of and requirements for determining the BOY 
and the Rampdown Rate are listed in the Judgment. Dudek’s original scope of work assumed that the numerical 
groundwater models that cover the East Las Posas Management Area (ELPMA) and the West Las Posas 
Management Area (WLPMA) would be used to determine the BOY. Dudek used the model that covers the ELPMA 
during development of the Periodic Evaluation of the LPV Basin Groundwater Sustainability Plan and proposed 
using this model to conduct the required analyses for the BOY Study. In contrast, the model that covers the WLPMA 
was constructed by and has been operated by United Water Conservation District (UWCD) staff. Consequently, 
Dudek and the Watermaster assumed that the Watermaster would contract with UWCD separately to conduct the 
numerical model analyses of the WLPMA for the BOY Study.  

Since October, the Watermaster has been unable to reach an agreement with UWCD to conduct the numerical 
model analyses of the WLPMA for the BOY Study. In December 2024, Watermaster staff requested that Dudek 
prepare potential alternative approaches to calculating the BOY for the WLPMA if UWCD were unable to perform 
the numerical model analyses under the approved schedule. The alternatives Dudek developed are:  

 Estimation of the BOY using the GSP evaluation model simulations.

 Estimation of the BOY using historical groundwater elevation measurements and extraction reporting.

 Development of a new numerical groundwater flow model for the WLPMA.

1 Las Posas Valley Water Rights Coalition v. Fox Canyon Groundwater Management Agency. Case No. VENCI00509700 (Judgment) 
defines the Basin Optimization Yield as, “the estimated yield that is projected to be available to achieve sustainable groundwater 
management by 2040.[…] The Basin Optimization Yield will take into account: (i) water available from native groundwater inflows; 
(ii) Return Flows; (iii) reasonably anticipated enhanced yield (i.e., managed replenishment excluding water stored and dedicated
to the Calleguas ASR Project) projected to be available by Water Year 2040 consistent with the projected Basin Optimization Plan;
and (iv) opportunities for optimization of the Sustainable Yield achieved by relocating Extraction and transmission of water to 
avoid Undesirable Results. The Basin Optimization Yield will also, through Adaptive Management, take into account circumstances 
including: (a) improved understanding of Basin conditions and hydrogeologic parameters as a result of new data over time; (b) 
the current status of Basin Optimization Projects; and (c) changing hydrological conditions”.  

F-4c - Exh B - BOYS Alternatives and Schedule Memo

4/17/25 PAC Agenda Packet Page 13 of 19



TO: FARAI KASEKE
SUBJECT: BASIN OPTIMIZATION YIELD STUDY ALTERNATIVE APPROACH, SCOPE, AND SCHEDULE IMPACTS 

MARCH 2025 2 

The first two alternate approaches were estimated to have a 3- to 6-month impact on the schedule, resulting in a 
completion date for the BOY Study in spring or summer of 2026. The third alternative was estimated to impact the 
study completion by 18- to 24-months. These potential alternatives were reviewed by the Technical Advisory 
Committee (TAC), which agreed with the general estimates of the schedule impacts for each alternative. TAC noted 
that the third alternative would cost the most and that the schedule impact was likely conservative. However, TAC 
communicated to the Watermaster that additional information regarding the three alternatives was necessary to 
provide recommendations regarding the preferred alternative. 

The Watermaster requested additional information on the alternatives outlined above, as well as a recommendation 
from Dudek on the preferred approach to completing the BOY Study. The Watermaster also requested a revised 
schedule based on the preferred approach. This memo provides the information requested by the Watermaster, 
with one notable substitution. Dudek does not recommend further pursuit of constructing a new model for this BOY 
Study because of the high cost and substantial impacts to the schedule. Therefore, construction of a new model 
has been replaced by an alternative in which Dudek conducts the numerical groundwater modeling of the WLPMA 
using model files provided to the Watermaster by UWCD. These model files were used to evaluate future conditions 
in the LPV Basin as part of the Periodic Evaluation of the LPV Basin Groundwater Sustainability Plan and submitted 
to Watermaster by UWCD as a deliverable in accordance with the contract between Watermaster and UWCD. 

The alternative approaches, the preferred approach, and the revised schedule are discussed below. 

Alternative Approaches 

Alternative 1: Estimation of the BOY Using the GSP Evaluation Model Runs 
The Periodic Evaluation of the GSP included five model scenarios that used UWCD’s Updated Coastal Plain Model 
that covers the entirety of the WLPMA, Oxnard Subbasin, and Pleasant Valley Basin. These model scenarios provide 
a range of estimates of the sustainable yield. UWCD provided the Watermaster with the output files from the model 
scenarios. These files contain the detailed information on the calculated water budget components and change in 
storage during the model run. They also contain the simulated groundwater elevations at each model cell for each 
stress period of the model run.  

Under this alternative, Dudek would use the output files provided by UWCD to develop correlations between the 
water budget components and the groundwater elevations simulated in the various scenarios. These correlations 
would then be used to estimate the anticipated groundwater elevations at individual wells in the WLPMA under the 
Operating Yield of 40,000 AFY, based on the distribution of groundwater production in the allocation schedule. The 
impact of projects would be evaluated by changing the pumping distribution in the WLPMA from the Future Baseline 
with Projects Scenario modeled in the Periodic Evaluation of the LPV Basin GSP. The correlations would be mapped 
onto the spatial change in pumping distribution and the resulting predicted groundwater elevations would be 
compared to those in the baseline analysis. If the estimated groundwater elevations in the project pumping scenario 
are below the minimum threshold groundwater elevations, up to three additional reduced pumping scenarios would 
be evaluated using this method, with the goal of estimating the BOY through predicted final groundwater levels that 
remain above the minimum thresholds. The difference between the operating yield and the highest estimated 
groundwater production rate that avoids undesirable results will be used as the basis for the Rampdown Rate 
calculation set forth in the Judgment. 

F-4c - Exh B - BOYS Alternatives and Schedule Memo

4/17/25 PAC Agenda Packet Page 14 of 19



TO: FARAI KASEKE
SUBJECT: BASIN OPTIMIZATION YIELD STUDY ALTERNATIVE APPROACH, SCOPE, AND SCHEDULE IMPACTS 

MARCH 2025 3 

We note that this alternative does not involve running the UWCD model. The intent of this alternative was to provide 
a method of estimating the BOY if UWCD did not contract with the Watermaster to run the model and did not provide 
the model files to the Watermaster under its contract with the FCGMA for the GSP evaluation. There are several 
notable limitations of this proposed alternative, three of which are listed below:  

 There is no guarantee that the variables would be correlated well enough to allow for estimation of the
BOY beyond what was already done for the Periodic Evaluation of the LPV Basin GSP. Therefore, this
analysis may not yield results that the Watermaster would be able to use to calculate the Rampdown Rate
with certainty.

 Even if the correlations are strong, these correlations of the model outputs are farther removed from the
actual groundwater conditions than the numerical model.

 This method is not well suited to capturing spatial variability in groundwater conditions, particularly when
projects are implemented because the correlations include built in assumptions on groundwater flow
direction and storage change from the specific numerical model runs on which they are based. The basis
for the correlations with projects, would be the Future Baseline with Projects Scenario. However, changing
the pumping distribution will impact groundwater flow in ways that may not be captured in this
alternative.

Because UWCD, under its contract with the FCGMA for the GSP evaluation, provided the Watermaster with the 
model files necessary to run scenarios with UWCD’s Updated Coastal Plain Model and because of the limitations 
listed above, Dudek does not recommend that the Watermaster use this alternative to proceed with development 
of the BOY and the determination of the Rampdown Rate.  

Alternative 2: Estimation of the BOY Using Historical Groundwater Elevation 
Measurements and Extraction Reports 

Similar to Alternative 1, this alternative involves correlating groundwater elevations to components of the water 
budget. The primary difference between these two alternatives, however, is that this alternative would use observed 
historical data to develop these correlations, not the results of the numerical groundwater model simulations. Under 
this alternative, Dudek would review historical changes in groundwater elevations across the monitoring network 
of groundwater wells in the WLPMA. Observed groundwater elevation changes would be compared to historical 
water budget inputs (e.g., precipitation, UWCD diversions and recharge operations) and outputs (e.g., groundwater 
production, and subsurface flows estimated by groundwater gradient) quantified in the GSP for the LPV Basin. 
Depending on the complexity of the observed relationships, additional statistical reduction of the number of 
controlling factors may be applied via principal component analysis.  

As with Alternative 1, the correlations developed from the historical data would be used to estimate the groundwater 
elevations at individual wells in the WLPMA under the Operating Yield of 40,000 AFY, based on the distribution of 
groundwater production in the allocation schedule, and the impact of projects would be evaluated by changing the 
pumping distribution in the WLPMA. Up to three additional reduced pumping scenarios would be evaluated, with 
the goal of estimating the BOY through predicted final groundwater levels that remain above the minimum 
thresholds. The difference between the operating yield and the highest estimated groundwater production rate that 
avoids undesirable results will be used as the basis for the Rampdown Rate calculation set forth in the Judgment. 

F-4c - Exh B - BOYS Alternatives and Schedule Memo

4/17/25 PAC Agenda Packet Page 15 of 19



TO: FARAI KASEKE
SUBJECT: BASIN OPTIMIZATION YIELD STUDY ALTERNATIVE APPROACH, SCOPE, AND SCHEDULE IMPACTS 

MARCH 2025 4 

The benefit of this alternative relative to alternative 1 is that the correlations are developed from observed data, 
rather than simulated data. This means there is one less step in the abstraction from the actual groundwater 
conditions. However, in addition to the limitations listed in alternative 1, which this alternative shares, the 
distribution of wells with historical observations that can be used to develop correlations is likely to be sparser in 
this alternative. Consequently, estimating the impacts of projects on groundwater elevations throughout the WLPMA 
would be challenging.  

Because the Watermaster now has the model files necessary to run scenarios with UWCD’s Updated Coastal Plain 
Model and the limitations listed above, Dudek does not recommend that the Watermaster use this alternative to 
proceed with development of the BOY and the determination of the Rampdown Rate.  

Alternative 3: Estimation of the BOY Using the UWCD Periodic Evaluation Model 
Files to Run New Scenarios 

UWCD provided the Watermaster with the numerical groundwater model files developed for the Periodic Evaluation 
as a deliverable under the contract between FCGMA and UWCD to conduct the numerical modeling for the Periodic 
Evaluation of the LPV Basin GSP. Under this alternative, Dudek would use those files to prepare, run, and analyze 
up to five model scenarios for the WLPMA using the version of UWCD’s Updated Coastal Plain Model used for the 
Periodic Evaluation. The five model scenarios are:  

1. A baseline scenario

2. A projects scenario

3. Up to three alternative pumping scenarios

The baseline scenario would simulate groundwater conditions in the WLPMA through water year 2069 using the 
hydrologic period from 1930-1979, modified by DWR’s 2070 central tendency climate change factors. Groundwater 
withdrawals in the baseline model scenario would be set equal to the allocations in the Groundwater Allocation 
Schedule prepared in accordance with the Water Right Holders in the WLPMA. The baseline model scenario would 
not include projects identified in the Basin Optimization Plan.  

To evaluate the benefits of implementing basin optimization projects, the projects scenario would integrate projects 
that were identified in the Draft Basin Optimization Plan as being practical, reasonable, and cost-effective to 
implement prior to 2040 using the same hydrology and groundwater pumping as the baseline scenario. Projects 
would be simulated according to the schedules and scales defined in the Draft Basin Optimization Plan. 
Groundwater budgets, the change in groundwater in storage, and groundwater levels at key wells simulated in the 
projects scenario would be compared to those simulated in the baseline scenario in order to provide a quantitative 
estimate of Basin Optimization Project benefits. 

If the Basin Optimization Projects do not avoid undesirable results in the WLPMA, up to three additional model 
scenarios would be evaluated to define a groundwater production rate that avoids undesirable results. These model 
runs would incorporate the same Basin Optimization Projects as the Projects scenario. The difference between the 
operating yield and the highest simulated groundwater production rate that avoids undesirable results would be 
used as the basis for the Rampdown Rate calculation set forth in the Judgment. 

This alternative also has several limitations that the Board, TAC, and Water Right Holders should be aware of. 
Four critical limitations are:  

F-4c - Exh B - BOYS Alternatives and Schedule Memo

4/17/25 PAC Agenda Packet Page 16 of 19



TO: FARAI KASEKE
SUBJECT: BASIN OPTIMIZATION YIELD STUDY ALTERNATIVE APPROACH, SCOPE, AND SCHEDULE IMPACTS 

MARCH 2025 5 

 UWCD has not yet published documentation for the Updated Coastal Plain model at this time. The last
model documentation was published in 2019 at the time the LPV Basin GSP was prepared. Therefore,
without updated information, Dudek is unable to assess the totality of the changes that were made to the
model since the last model documentation was published in 2019. Consequently, Dudek would be able to
run the model and analyze the output files but has not been provided with sufficient background
information to fully understand all the model behavior with respect to the LPV Basin. There may be
questions that arise from the results of the model simulations that Dudek is unable to answer without
additional information.

 UWCD’s Surface Water Distribution Model is not publicly available. Therefore, Dudek would not be able to
update the representation of conjunctive use and groundwater pumping within the Oxnard Subbasin and
Pleasant Valley Basin. If UWCD were running the Updated Coastal Plain model directly, it would be able to
update the Surface Water Distribution Model.

 During development of the Periodic Evaluation of the LPV Basin GSP, Dudek identified that UWCD had
changed the representation of the Somis Fault on the eastern boundary of the WLPMA from a no-flow
boundary to a general head boundary. As a result, the Updated Coastal Plain Model simulated subsurface
flows from the WLPMA to the ELPMA in the Periodic Evaluation of the LPV Basin GSP. These flows may
increase as projects are implemented or groundwater production is reduced in the model. However,
changes to this model boundary would require a re-calibration of the model. Without the complete model
documentation and given the timeframe for completing the BOY Study before the start of the LPVB 2026
Water Year in October 2026, Dudek would be unable to change any parameters that would result in the
need to recalibrate the Updated Coastal Plain model.

 Without the complete model documentation for changes made since 2019, andp given the timeframe for
completing the BOY Study before the start of the LPVB 2026 Water Year in October 2026, Dudek would
also be unable to conduct a model validation or uncertainty quantification for the BOY Study.

Although the limitations of this alternative are serious, and Dudek would have preferred that the UWCD staff who 
built and calibrated Updated Coastal Plain Model conduct the modeling for the BOY, Dudek believes that this 
alternative uses the best available tool for evaluating the impact of changes to groundwater production rates on 
groundwater conditions in the WLPMA. Therefore, this is Dudek’s recommended alternative. 

Revised Schedule 

Watermaster Board approved Dudek’s scope and schedule for the preparation of the BOY Study at its October 23, 
2024, meeting. The schedule, which ended with completion of the BOY Study in December 2025, assumed that 
UWCD would conduct the numerical groundwater modeling for the WLPMA. The initial tasks that did not rely on 
UWCD modeling are well underway or have been completed. However, modeling of the baseline scenario was 
supposed to begin on February 25, 2025, and be completed by March 25, 2025. This modeling has not yet begun 
because of the ongoing uncertainty surrounding the numerical groundwater modeling of the WLPMA. 

The delay in starting the baseline model impacts the entire BOY Study schedule, as the remaining tasks depend on 
completion of this task. Dudek has prepared a revised schedule (Table 1) that assumes PAC and TAC will require 
time to review the proposed alternatives and prepare recommendation reports. Under this schedule, the 
recommendation reports and the Watermaster response report will be presented to the Watermaster Board for 
consideration at the May 28, 2025 meeting. If the Watermaster Board approves the recommended approach for 
Dudek to conduct the numerical groundwater analysis of the WLPMA using UWCD’s Updated Coastal Plain model, 

F-4c - Exh B - BOYS Alternatives and Schedule Memo

4/17/25 PAC Agenda Packet Page 17 of 19



TO: FARAI KASEKE
SUBJECT: BASIN OPTIMIZATION YIELD STUDY ALTERNATIVE APPROACH, SCOPE, AND SCHEDULE IMPACTS 

MARCH 2025 6 

Dudek will begin the baseline modeling beginning on June 2, 2025, the Monday following the May 28 Board 
meeting. This schedule is longer than the previously approved schedule primarily because of the timing of 
consultations with the TAC and the Watermaster Board. Under this schedule, the BOY Study will be completed in 
May 2026, assuming that the data needed to conduct each task in the study are provided by the start date of the 
task and that the meeting dates for committee consultation and Board review are met. Changes to the consultation 
dates or the length of time required for committee review will impact the schedule.  

Table 1. Revised Schedule for Preparation of the BOY Study 

Description Duration Original 
Schedule Date 

Revised 
Schedule Date 

Task 1 - Model Scenario Development 
Presentation of Proposed Model Scenarios to TAC 6 1/7/2025 - 

TAC Recommendation Report 14 1/21/2025 - 
Watermaster Response Report 14 2/4/2025 - 
Recommendation & Response Reports discussed by 
WM Board at special meeting. 

10 2/14/2025 - 

Task 2 - Numerical Modeling1 

Task 2.1 - Baseline Scenario 21 2/25/2025 6/2/2025 (s) 
Task 2.2 - Projects Scenario 28 3/25/2025 6/23/2025 (s) 

TAC review of Baseline and Projects 7 4/1/2025 8/5/2025 (m) 
TAC Recommendation Report 21 4/22/2025 8/26/2025 (d) 
Watermaster Response Report 21 5/13/2025 9/16/2025 (d) 
Recommendation & Response Reports 
discussed by WM Board 

15 5/28/2025 9/24/2025 (m) 

Task 2.3 - Model Alternative Pumping Scenarios 30 6/27/2025 10/25/2025 (d) 
Task 4 - Basin Optimization Yield Study 

Task 4.1 - Draft BOY Study 45 8/11/2025 12/9/2025 (d) 
PAC & TAC Recommendation Reports 60 10/10/2025 2/7/2026 (d) 
Watermaster Response Report & revised 
draft BOY Study 21 10/31/2025 2/28/2026 (d) 

Recommendation & Response Reports 
discussed by Watermaster Board; Board 
provides direction on revised draft BOY Study 

26 11/8/2025 3/25/2026 (m) 

Task 4.2 - Final BOY Study development following 
Watermaster Board review 

28 12/6/2025 4/22/2026 (d) 

Watermaster Board Approval of Final BOY Study 28 12/12/2025 5/27/2026 (m) 
1) Task 3 is now part of Task 2 since UWCD declined to conduct WLPMA modeling under contract with the Watermaster.
2) ‘-‘ No need for revised schedule because the event has already occurred.
3) Gray text dates can no longer be achieved under the delayed schedule.
4) (s) Start date
5) (d) Deliverable date
6) (m) Meeting date

F-4c - Exh B - BOYS Alternatives and Schedule Memo

4/17/25 PAC Agenda Packet Page 18 of 19



TO: FARAI KASEKE
SUBJECT: BASIN OPTIMIZATION YIELD STUDY ALTERNATIVE APPROACH, SCOPE, AND SCHEDULE IMPACTS 

MARCH 2025 7 

Dudek understands that Water Right Holders in the LPV Basin require as much advance notice as possible to 
prepare for allocation rampdowns. This schedule provides the final Rampdown Rate calculation to the Watermaster 
Board for approval four months before the start of the LPVB 2026 water year.  

 Conclusions 

UWCD’s inability to conduct the numerical model simulations for the WLPMA has forced the Watermaster to explore 
alternative methods for calculating the BOY and has impacted the schedule for calculating the Rampdown Rate 
and completing the BOY Study. Of the three alternatives discussed in this memo, Dudek recommends running the 
UWCD Updated Coastal Plain model using the model files used for the Periodic Evaluation of the GSP provided by 
UWCD as deliverable required under the contract with FCGMA. While this approach has limitations that are 
discussed above, it will provide the most quantitative estimate of the BOY and uses the best available tool for 
investigating impacts to groundwater conditions under different groundwater production scenarios. If the 
Watermaster chooses to proceed with this alternative, and the deadlines provided in Table 1 for task completion 
and committee consultation are met, the BOY Study should be completed by May 2026, four months before the 
start of the LPVB 2026 water year. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me (760-479-4116) if you have questions or would like to discuss Dudek’s 
recommended approach further.  

Sincerely, 

_________________________________ 
Jill Weinberger, PhD, PG  
Principal Hydrogeologist 

F-4c - Exh B - BOYS Alternatives and Schedule Memo

4/17/25 PAC Agenda Packet Page 19 of 19


	2025_04_17 PAC Agenda.pdf
	F-1 2025_03_20 PAC Minutes.pdf
	F-3a - 202504010_LPV Surplus Budget.pdf
	F-3b - 20250410_LPV Overuse Assessment_revised.pdf
	F-4a - 20250403_PAC Memo re BOYS Pref Alt_revised.pdf
	F-4b - Exh A_20241223_PAC Memo from Watermaster_BOYS Schedule.pdf
	F-4c - Exh B_BOYS Alternatives and Schedule Memo_0331.pdf



